

NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER CONTRACTS/PURCHASING DIVISION 1441 CONSTITUTION BLVD SALINAS, CA 93906

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS # 9600-79 For Marketing and Graphic Design Services

At Natividad Medical Center

Proposals are due by 3:00 pm (PST) on Monday, March 19, 2018

(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

Table of Contents

SOLICITATION DETAILS SECTION	4
1.0 INTENT	5
2.0 BACKGROUND	5
3.0 CALENDAR OF EVENTS	5
4.0 NATIVIDAD POINTS OF CONTACT	6
5.0 SCOPE OF WORK	6
6.0 CONTRACT TERM	
7.0 PROPOSAL PACKAGE REQUIREMENTS	7
8.0 SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS	10
9.0 SELECTION CRITERIA	11
10.0 PREFERENCE FOR LOCAL CONTRACTORS	12
11.0 CONTRACT AWARDS	
12.0 SEQUENTIAL CONTRACT NEGOTIATION	13
13.0 AGREEMENT TO TERMS AND CONDITIONS	13
14.0 COLLUSION	
15.0 RIGHTS TO PERTINENTS MATERIALS	14
SAMPLE AGREEMENT SECTION	15
SAMPLE AGREEMENT BETWEEN NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER (COUNTY OF	
MONTEREY) AND CONTRACTOR	16
1.0 RECITALS	
2.0 PERFORMANCE OF THE AGREEMENT	16
3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICE	17
4.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT	17
5.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS	18
6.0 INVOICES AND PURCHASE ORDERS	18
7.0 STANDARD INDEMNIFICATION	
8.0 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL INDEMNIFICATION	
9.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	20
10.0 NON-DISCRIMINATION	
11.0 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING	
12.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST	23
13.0 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS	
14.0 RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY	24
15.0 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT	
16.0 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS	25
17.0 NOTICES	
18.0 LEGAL DISPUTES	
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS AND RFP SIGNATURE PAGE	27
SIGNATURE PAGE	32

SOLICITATION DETAILS SECTION

1.0 INTENT

- 1.1 The County of Monterey on behalf of Natividad Medical Center, hereinafter referred to as "NMC", is soliciting proposals from a qualified organization(s), hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR", to provide Marketing and Graphic Design Services.
- 1.2 This solicitation is not intended to create an exclusive service AGREEMENT. County retains the ability, at its sole discretion, to add qualified CONTRACTORS at any time [OR for Master Agreements: after one year from the signing of the AGREEMENT].

2.0 BACKGROUND

- 2.1 Natividad Medical Center is a 172-bed acute care medical center owned and operated by Monterey County. A Board of Trustees appointed by the Board of Supervisors works with Administration on day-to-day operations of the medical center.
- 2.2 Natividad Medical Center is a Monterey County owned community hospital emphasizing the care of women, children and families. Fully Accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals and Healthcare Organizations, Natividad Medical Center is a modern medical center campus offering comprehensive inpatient, outpatient, diagnostic and specialty care.

3.0 CALENDAR OF EVENTS

3.1	Issue RFP	Monday, February 19, 2018
3.2	Deadline for Written Questions	Friday, March 9, 2018
3.3	Proposal Submittal Deadline	Monday, March 19, 2018
3.4	Estimated Notification of Selection	April 2018
3.5	Estimated AGREEMENT Date	June 2018

This schedule is subject to change as necessary.

3.6 **FUTURE ADDENDA:** CONTRACTORS, who received notification of this solicitation by means other than through a Natividad Medical Center mailing, shall contact the person designated in the NATIVIDAD POINTS OF CONTACT herein to request to be added to the mailing list. Inclusion on the mailing list is the only way to ensure timely notification of any addenda and/or information that may be issued prior to the solicitation submittal date. **IT IS THE CONTRACTORS' SOLE RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE THAT**

THEY RECEIVE ANY AND ALL ADDENDA FOR THIS RFP by either informing Natividad Medical Center of their mailing information or by regularly checking the NMC website at www.natividad.com (Vendors tab). Addenda will be posted on the website the day they are released.

4.0 NATIVIDAD POINTS OF CONTACT

4.1 Questions and correspondence regarding this solicitation shall be directed to the primary NMC Contact for this solicitation:

Maribel Zendejas NMC Contracts Division Natividad Medical Center 1441 Constitution Blvd. Salinas, CA 93906 E-mail: zendejasm@natividad.com

- 4.2 All questions regarding this solicitation shall be submitted in writing (E-mail is acceptable). The questions will be researched and the answers will be communicated to all known interested CONTRACTORS after the deadline for receipt of questions.
- 4.3 The deadline for submitting written questions regarding this solicitation is indicated in the **CALENDAR OF EVENTS herein**. Questions submitted after the deadline will not be answered.
- 4.4 Only answers to questions communicated by formal written addenda will be binding.
- 4.5 Prospective CONTRACTORS shall not contact Natividad Medical Center or County officers or employees with questions or suggestions regarding this solicitation except through the primary contact person listed above. Any unauthorized contact may be considered undue pressure and cause for disqualification of the CONTRACTOR.

5.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- 5.1 <u>Contractor Minimum Work Performance Percentage:</u> CONTRACTOR shall perform with his own organization contract work amounting to not less than 50 percent of the original total contract price, except that any designated 'Specialty Items' may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 'Specialty Items' so performed may be deducted from the original total contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the Contractor with his own organization.
- 5.2 The Scope of Work includes is not limited to the following:
 - 5.2.1 Development of customized strategic marketing plans
 - 5.2.2 Brand planning, development, and positioning including overall brand campaigns

- 5.2.3 Creative development of marketing collateral and support materials
- 5.2.4 Graphic design & coordination of production services for marketing collateral and support materials
- 5.2.5 Coordination of print services
- 5.2.6 Advertising services including creative, production, placement, and measurement
- 5.2.7 Website design, maintenance, and optimization including information architecture, content management, site design, metrics, and other expertise as needed
- 5.2.8 Social Media Services
- 5.2.9 Video and Photography
- 5.2.10 Event planning & support materials
- 5.2.11 Project management services

6.0 CONTRACT TERM

- 6.1 The initial term of the AGREEMENT(s) will be for a period of three (3) years with the option to extend the AGREEMENT(s) two (2) additional one (1) year periods.
- 6.2 The AGREEMENT(s) shall contain a clause that provides that Natividad Medical Center (County of Monterey) reserves the right to cancel this AGREEMENT(s), or any extension of this AGREEMENT(s), without cause, with a thirty day (30) written notice, or immediately with cause.
- 6.3 If the AGREEMENT(s) includes options for renewal or extension, CONTRACTOR must commence negotiations for any desired rate changes a minimum of ninety days (90) prior to the expiration of the AGREEMENT(s).
 - 6.3.1 Both parties shall agree upon rate extension(s) or changes in writing.
 - 6.3.2 Natividad Medical Center (County of Monterey) does not have to provide a reason if it elects not to renew.

7.0 PROPOSAL PACKAGE REQUIREMENTS

7.1 **CONTENT AND LAYOUT:**

7.1.1 Provide the information as requested and as applicable to the proposed services. The proposal package shall be organized as per the table below; headings and section numbering utilized in the proposal package shall be the same as those identified in the table. <u>ALL SECTIONS WITHIN THE PROPOSAL SHOULD</u> <u>BE TABBED</u>. Proposal packages shall include at a minimum, but not limited to, the following information in the format indicated:

Proposal Package Layout; Organize and Number Sections as Follows:				
	COVER LETTER (INCLUDING CONTACT INFO)			
Section 1	RECEIPT OF SIGNED ADDENDA(s) (IF ANY)			
	RFP SIGNATURE PAGE			
	TABLE OF CONTENTS			
Section 2	REQUIRED PRE-QUALIFICATIONS			
Section 3 GENERAL FIRM INFORMATION (ATTACHMENT A)				
Section 4 PRICING (ATTACHMENT B)				
Section 5 PROJECT EXPERIENCE & REFERENCES (ATTACHMENT C)				
Section 6	EXCEPTIONS			
Section 7	SAMPLES			
Section 8	APPENDIX			

Section 1 Requirements:

Cover Letter: All proposals must be accompanied by a cover letter not exceeding the equivalent of two (2) single-sided pages and should provide Contact information and organizational information as follows:

Contact Info: The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of your primary contact person during the solicitation process through to potential contract award.

Organizational Info: Description of the type of organization (e.g. corporation, partnership, including joint venture teams and subcontractors) and how many years it's been in existence.

Signed RFP Signature Page and Signed Addenda (this is applicable only if any addenda were released for this solicitation). Proposals submitted without this page will be deemed non-responsive. All signatures must be manual and in BLUE ink. All prices and notations must be typed or written in BLUE ink. Errors may be crossed out and corrections printed in ink or typed adjacent, and must be initialed in BLUE ink by the person signing the proposal.

Table of Contents

Section 2, Required Pre-Qualifications Requirements necessary to fulfill the "Scope of Work" Section 6:

Pre-Qualifications: CONTRACTOR must acknowledge in writing that it meets all of the required pre-qualifications requirements as set forth in Section 3.0 herein.

Section 3, General Firm Information:

Complete and submit General Firm Information as per EXHIBIT A – GENERAL FIRM INFORMATION sheet attached hereto.

Section 4, Pricing Information:

Complete and submit Pricing Information as per EXHIBIT B – PRICING

Costs that are subject to sales tax should be identified as taxable. All applicable CA sales tax shall be included as a separate line item.

Section 5, Project Experience and References:

Complete and submit project experience and references as per ATTACHMENT C – PROJECT EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES attached hereto.

Section 6, Exceptions:

Submit any and all exceptions to this solicitation on separate pages, and clearly identify the top of each page with "EXCEPTION TO NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER RFP #9600-79, SECTION X.X"; each Exception shall reference the RFP section number, and briefly explain the reason for taking Exception as appropriate. CONTRACTOR should note that the submittal of an Exception does not obligate Natividad Medical Center to revise the terms of the RFP or AGREEMENT.

Section 7, Samples:

CONTRACTOR shall provide the samples listed below which will be scored on quality, creativity, originality and relevance:

- Samples of Marketing Plans
- Brand Campaigns
- Other Marketing Collateral
- Sample Ads
- Sample Web Site Pages

Section 8, Appendix (This is an optional section in your proposal):

CONTRACTOR shall provide any additional information that it believes to be applicable to this proposal package.

- 8.2 <u>ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:</u> To be considered "responsive," submitted proposals shall adhere to the following:
 - 8.2.1 Five (5) sets of the proposal package (one proposal marked "Original" plus four copies) shall be submitted in response to this solicitation. Each copy shall include a cover indicating the company name submitting, and should reference "RFP 9600-79". In addition, submit one (1) electronic version of the entire proposal package on a USB memory stick. Additional copies may be requested by NMC at its discretion.

- 8.2.2 Proposals shall be prepared on 8-1/2" x 11" paper, preferably duplex printed and stapled together without binder or plastic enclosure (environmentally friendly). Fold out charts, tables, spreadsheets, brochures, pamphlets, and other pertinent information or work product examples may be included as Appendices.
- 8.2.3 Reproductions of the Monterey County Seal or Natividad Medical Center Logo shall <u>not</u> be used in any documents submitted in response to this solicitation.
- 8.2.4 CONTRACTOR shall not use white-out or a similar correction product to make late changes to their proposal or qualifications package but may instead line out and initial in BLUE ink any item which no longer is applicable or accurate.
- 8.2.5 To validate your proposal, **submit the RFP SIGNATURE PAGE** (contained herein) **with your proposal**. Proposals submitted without that page will be deemed non-responsive. Proposal signature must be manual, in BLUE ink, and included with the original copy of the proposal. Photocopies of the RFP Signature Page may be inserted into the remaining four (4) proposal copies.
- 8.3 **CONFIDENTIAL OR PROPRIETARY CONTENT:** Any page of the proposal that is deemed by CONTRACTOR to be a trade secret by the CONTRACTOR shall be clearly marked "CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION" or "PROPRIETARY INFORMATION" at the top of the page.

8.0 SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS & CONDITIONS

- 8.1 <u>Submittal Identification Requirements:</u> ALL BOXES AND/OR ENVELOPES MAILED OR DELIVERED CONTAINING PROPOSALS MUST BE SEALED AND BEAR ON THE OUTSIDE, PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED IN THE LOWER LEFT CORNER: THE SOLICITATION NUMBER RFP #9600-79 and CONTRACTOR'S COMPANY NAME.
- 8.2 <u>Mailing Address:</u> Proposals shall be mailed to NMC at the mailing address indicated on the **RFP Signature Page** of this solicitation.
- 8.3 <u>Due Date:</u> Proposals must be received by NMC ON OR BEFORE the time and date specified, at the location and to the person specified on the **RFP Signature Page** of this solicitation. It is the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to ensure that its proposal is received at or before the specified time. Postmarks and facsimiles are not acceptable. Proposals received after the deadline shall be deemed non-responsive and rejected.
- 8.4 <u>Shipping Costs:</u> Unless stated otherwise, the F.O.B. for tangible receivables shall be destination. Charges for transportation, containers, packaging and other related shipping costs shall be borne by the shipper.

- 8.5 Acceptance: Proposals are subject to acceptance at any time within 90 days after opening. NMC reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, or part of any proposal, to postpone the scheduled deadline date(s), to make an award in its own best interest, and to waive any informalities or technicalities that do not significantly affect or alter the substance of an otherwise responsible proposal or qualifications package and that would not affect a CONTRACTOR'S ability to perform the work adequately as specified.
- 8.6 Ownership: All submittals in response to this solicitation become the property of the Natividad Medical Center (County of Monterey). If a CONTRACTOR does not wish to submit a Proposal but wishes to acknowledge the receipt of the request, the reply envelope shall be marked "No Bid".
- 8.7 <u>Compliance:</u> Proposal or qualifications packages that do not follow the format, content and submittal requirements as described herein, or fail to provide the required documentation, may receive lower evaluation scores or be deemed non-responsive.
- 8.8 <u>CAL-OSHA</u>: The items proposed shall conform to all applicable requirements of the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration Act of 1973 (CAL-OSHA).

9.0 SELECTION CRITERIA

- 9.1 The selection of CONTRACTOR and subsequent contract award(s) will be based on the criteria contained in this Solicitation, as demonstrated in the submitted proposal. CONTRACTOR should submit information sufficient for NMC to easily evaluate proposals with respect to the selection criteria. The absence of required information may cause the Proposal to be deemed non-responsive and may be cause for rejection.
- 9.2 The selection criteria include, but are not limited to, the following:

	Evaluation Criteria	Weight
1.	Competitive Pricing (Hourly Rates and Overall Fees), <i>Attachment B</i>	20
2.	CONTRACTOR's direct experience providing Hospital/ Healthcare Marketing, Web Page Design & Maintenance and Graphic Design services as specified in this RFP	20
3.	Company Background, Staff Qualifications/Expertise	5
4.	Complete and Organized Bid Response	5
5.	Quality, Creativity, Originality and Relevance of Samples Provided	15
6.	References, Attachment C	10
7.	Social Media Experience, Attachment C	5

8.	Website Design & Maintenance Experience,	
	Attachment C	10
9.	Local Vendor Preference, Attachment D	10
	TOTAL	100

- 9.3 AGREEMENT award(s) will not be based on cost alone.
- 9.4 NMC reserves the right to act as its own reference if the proposer has provided services to NMC previously.

10.0 PREFERENCE FOR LOCAL CONTRACTORS

- 10.1 **Local Preference Policy:** The County desires, whenever possible, to contract with qualified Local Vendors to provide goods and services to the County. As per the Local Preference Policy (posted online at http://www.natividad.com/about-us/vendors) this solicitation utilizes a "best value" method of selection as opposed to a cost based selection only, therefore *ten* (10) points will be applied to the scoring evaluation for an organization which qualifies as a Local Vendor. Local Vendor is defined as:
 - 10.1.1 Vendor either owns, leases, rents or otherwise occupies a fixed office or other commercial building, or portion thereof, having a street address within Monterey County, Santa Cruz County, or San Benito County (the "Area"). Vendor possesses a valid and verifiable business license, if required, issued buy a city within the Area or by one of the three counties within the Area when the address is located in an unincorporated area within one of the three counties; and
 - 10.1.2 Vendor employs at least one full time employee within the Area, or if the business has no employees, the business must be at least fifty percent (50%) owned by one or more persons whose primary residence(s) is located within the Area; and
 - 10.1.3 Vendor's business must have been in existence, in Vendor's name, within the Area for at least two (2) years immediately prior to the issuance of either a request for competitive bids or request for proposals for the County; and
 - 10.1.4 Newly established businesses which are owned by an individual(s) formerly employed by a Local Vendor for at least two (2) years also qualifies for the preference; and
 - 10.1.5 If applicable vendor must possess a valid resale license from the State Franchise Tax Board showing vendor's local address within the Area and evidencing that payment of the local share of the sales tax goes to either a city within the Area or to one of the three counties within the defined Area.
- An organization which believes it meets the definition of a Local Vendor is advised to read the entire policy (link to policy posted in Section 10.1 above) AND for purposes of this procurement must register as a local vendor with the County via the Vendor Registration Link: Vendor Self Service (VSS) located online at: http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/vendorinfo.htm

AND should submit the *Local Business Declaration Form* with their proposal (RFP Attachment I – Local Business Declaration Form attached hereto this Solicitation).

11.0 CONTRACT AWARDS

- 11.1 <u>Multiple Award(s)</u>: NMC has the option to award a portion or portions of this contract to multiple successful CONTRACTOR at the sole discretion of and benefit to NMC
- 11.2 <u>Board of Supervisors:</u> The award(s) made from this solicitation may be subject to approval by the Monterey County Board of Supervisors.
- 11.3 <u>Interview:</u> NMC reserves the right to interview selected CONTRACTOR before a contract is awarded. The costs of attending any interview are the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility.
- 11.4 <u>Incurred Costs:</u> NMC is not liable for any cost incurred by CONTRACTOR in response to this solicitation.
- 11.5 <u>Notification:</u> Unsuccessful CONTRACTORS who have submitted a Proposal will be notified of the final decision as soon as it has been determined.
- 11.6 <u>In NMC's Best Interest:</u> The award(s) resulting from this solicitation will be made to the CONTRACTOR that submit(s) a response that, in the sole opinion of NMC who best serves the overall interest of NMC and the County of Monterey.
- 11.7 <u>No Guaranteed Value:</u> NMC does not guarantee a minimum or maximum dollar value for any AGREEMENT or AGREEMENTS resulting from this solicitation.

12. 0 SEQUENTIAL CONTRACT NEGOTIATION

12.1 NMC will pursue contract negotiations with the CONTRACTOR who submit(s) the best Proposal and is deemed the most qualified in the sole opinion of NMC, and which is in accordance with the criteria as described within this solicitation. If the contract negotiations are unsuccessful, in the opinion of either NMC or CONTRACTOR, NMC may pursue contract negotiations with the entity that submitted a Proposal which NMC deems to be the next best qualified to provide the services, or NMC may issue a new solicitation or take any other action which it deems to be in its best interest.

13.0 AGREEMENT TO TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13.1 CONTRACTOR selected through the solicitation process will be expected to execute a formal AGREEMENT with NMC for the provision of the requested service. The AGREEMENT shall be written by NMC in a standard format approved by County Counsel, similar to the "SAMPLE AGREEMENT SECTION" herein. Submission of a

signed bid/proposal and the **RFP SIGNATURE PAGE** will be interpreted to mean CONTRACTOR HAS AGREED TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS set forth in the pages of this solicitation and the standard provisions included in the **SAMPLE AGREEMENT** Section herein. NMC <u>may</u> but is not required to consider including language from the CONTRACTOR'S proposed AGREEMENT, and any such submission shall be included in the EXCEPTIONS section of CONTRACTOR'S proposal.

14.0 COLLUSION

14.1 CONTRACTOR shall not conspire, attempt to conspire, or commit any other act of collusion with any other interested party for the purpose of secretly, or otherwise, establishing an understanding regarding rates or conditions to the solicitation that would bring about any unfair conditions.

15.0 RIGHTS TO PERTINENT MATERIALS

15.1 All responses, inquiries, and correspondence related to this solicitation and all reports, charts, displays, schedules, exhibits, and other documentation produced by the CONTRACTOR that are submitted as part of the submittal will become the property of NMC when received by NMC and may be considered public information under applicable law. Any proprietary information in the submittal must be identified as such and marked "CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION" or "PROPRIETARY INFORMATION". NMC will not disclose proprietary information to the public, unless required by law; however, NMC cannot guarantee that such information will be held confidential.

This space left blank intentionally

RFP	# 9600-79	Marketing	&	Graphic	Design	Serv	rices

SAMPLE AGREEMENT SECTION

(SAMPLE) AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by the County of Monterey on behalf of Natividad Medical Center, hereinafter referred to as "NMC", a political subdivision of the State of California, and (CONTRACTOR NAME WILL BE STATED HERE), hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR."

1.0 RECITALS

WHEREAS, NMC has invited proposals through the Request for Proposals (RFP # 9600-79) for Marketing & Graphic Design Services, in accordance with the specifications set forth in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has submitted a responsive and responsible proposal to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the expertise and capabilities necessary to provide the services requested.

NOW THEREFORE, NMC and CONTRACTOR, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows:

2.0 PERFORMANCE OF THE AGREEMENT

2.1	After consideration and evaluation of the CONTRACTOR'S proposal, NMC hereby
	engages CONTRACTOR to provide the services set forth in RFP #9600-79 and in this
	AGREEMENT on the terms and conditions contained herein and in RFP # 9600-79. The
	intent of this AGREEMENT is to summarize the contractual obligations of the parties. The
	component parts of this AGREEMENT include the following:

RFP # 96000-79 dated	, including all attachments and exhibits
Addendum (or Addenda) #	_
CONTRACTOR'S Proposal dated	;
Security for CONTRACTOR'S propo	osal,
AGREEMENT,	
Payment and Performance Bonds	
Certificate of Insurance	
Additional Insured Endorsements	

2.2 All of the above-referenced contract documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the above-referenced contract documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. In the event of a conflict between or among component parts of the contract, the contract documents shall be construed in the following order: AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR'S Proposal, RFP #9600-79 including all attachments and exhibits,

Addendum/Addenda issued, Certificate of Insurance, and Additional Insured Endorsements.

- 2.3 CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR's agents, employees, and subcontractors performing services under this AGREEMENT are specially trained, experienced, competent, and appropriately licensed to perform the work and deliver the services required under this AGREEMENT and are not employees of NMC nor of the County of Monterey, or immediate family of an employee of Natividad Medical Center nor of the County of Monterey.
- 2.4 CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, and subcontractors shall perform all work in a safe and skillful manner and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. All work performed under this AGREEMENT that is required by law to be performed or supervised by licensed personnel shall be performed in accordance with such licensing requirements.
- 2.5 CONTRACTOR shall procure all necessary permits and licenses and abide by all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of the United States and of the State of California. The Agency will be in compliance with Title 22, OSHA, Federal and State Labor Laws and the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations.
 - 18.5.1 CONTRACTOR must maintain all applicable and required licenses throughout the term of the AGREEMENT.
- 2.6 CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at its own expense, all materials, equipment, and personnel necessary to carry out the terms of this AGREEMENT, except as otherwise specified in this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall not use Natividad Medical Center premises, property (including equipment, instruments, or supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in the performance of its obligations under this AGREEMENT.

3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICE

(Shall be consistent with Scope of Work defined in this Solicitation and shall include description of goods and/or services provided including timelines and deliverables. Shall also include itemized pricing (including tax), a total price, and all associated payment provisions. Additional conditions may be stated such as details regarding training, meetings, any "Acceptance Testing" or "Notice to Proceed" clauses and project management requirements if applicable.

4.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT

4.1	The initial te	erm shall commence w	vith the	signing of	the AGI	REEMENT	through	anc
	including	, with the option	n to exte	nd the AGR	REEMEN	T for		
	additional	year periods.	NMC is	s not require	ed to stat	e a reason i	f it elects	s no
	to renew this	AGREEMENT.						

- 4.2 If NMC exercises its option to extend, all applicable parties shall mutually agree upon the extension, including any changes in rate and/or terms and conditions.
- 4.3 NMC reserves the right to cancel the AGREEMENT, or any extension of the AGREEMENT, without cause, with a thirty (30) day written notice, or immediately with cause.

5.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS

- 5.1 It is mutually understood and agreed by both parties that CONTRACTOR shall be compensated under this AGREEMENT in accordance with the pricing sheet attached hereto.
- 5.2 Prices shall remain firm for the initial term of this AGREEMENT and, thereafter, may be adjusted annually as provided in this paragraph. NMC does not guarantee any minimum or maximum amount of dollars to be spent under this AGREEMENT.
- 5.3 Negotiations for rate changes shall be commenced, by CONTRACTOR, a minimum of ninety days (90) prior to the expiration of this AGREEMENT.
- 5.4 Any discount offered by the CONTRACTOR must allow for payment after receipt and acceptance of services, material or equipment and correct invoice, whichever is later. In no case will a discount be considered that requires payment in less than 30 days.
- 5.5 CONTRACTOR shall levy no additional fees nor surcharges of any kind during the term of this AGREEMENT without first obtaining approval from NMC in writing.
- 5.6 Tax:
 - 21.6.1 Pricing as per this AGREEMENT is inclusive of all applicable taxes.
 - 21.6.2 County is registered with the Internal Revenue Service, San Francisco office, EIN number 94-6000524. The County is exempt from Federal Transportation Tax; an exemption certificate is not required where shipping documents show Monterey County as consignee.

6.0 INVOICES AND PURCHASE ORDERS

6.1 Invoices for all services rendered per this AGREEMENT shall be billed directly to the Natividad Medical Center Accounts Payable department at the following address:

Natividad Medical Center Accounts Payable Department P.O. Box 81611 Salinas, CA. 93912

- 6.2 CONTACTOR shall reference the RFP/RFQ number on all invoices submitted to NMC. CONTRACTOR shall submit such invoices periodically or at the completion of services, but in any event, not later than 30 days after completion of services. The invoice shall set forth the amounts claimed by CONTRACTOR for the previous period, together with an itemized basis for the amounts claimed, and such other information pertinent to the invoice. NMC shall certify the invoice, either in the requested amount or in such other amount as NMC approves in conformity with this AGREEMENT, and shall promptly submit such invoice to the County Auditor-Controller for payment. County Auditor-Controller shall pay the amount certified within 30 days of receiving the certified invoice.
- 6.3 All NMC Purchase Orders issued for the AGREEMENT are valid only during the fiscal year in which they are issued (the fiscal year is defined as July 1 through June 30).
- 6.4 Unauthorized Surcharges or Fees: Invoices containing unauthorized surcharges or unauthorized fees of any kind shall be rejected by NMC. Surcharges and additional fees not included the AGREEMENT must be approved by NMC in writing via an Amendment.

7.0 STANDARD INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County of Monterey, including its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, and losses whatsoever (including damages to property and injuries to or death of persons, court costs, and reasonable attorneys' fees) occurring or resulting to any and all persons, firms or corporations furnishing or supplying work, services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this AGREEMENT, and from any and all claims, liabilities, and losses occurring or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation for damage, injury, or death arising out of or connected with CONTRACTOR's performance of this AGREEMENT, unless such claims, liabilities, or losses arise out of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of County of Monterey. "CONTRACTOR's performance" includes CONTRACTOR's action or inaction and the action or inaction of CONTRACTOR's officers, employees, agents and subcontractors.

8.0 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 For purposes of the following indemnification provisions ("Indemnification AGREEMENT"), "design professional" has the same meaning as set forth in California Civil Code section 2782.8. If any term, provision or application of this Indemnification AGREEMENT is found to be invalid, in violation of public policy or unenforceable to any extent, such finding shall not invalidate any other term or provision of this Indemnification AGREEMENT and such other terms and provisions shall continue in full force and effect. If there is any conflict between the terms, provisions or application of this Indemnification AGREEMENT and the provisions of California Civil Code Sections 2782 or 2782.8, the broadest indemnity protection for County of Monterey under this Indemnity AGREEMENT that is permitted by law shall be provided by CONTRACTOR.

8.2 Indemnification for Design Professional Services Claims:

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless County of Monterey, its governing board, directors, officers, employees, and agents against any claims that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and agents in the performance of design professional services under this AGREEMENT, excepting only liability arising from the sole negligence, active negligence or willful misconduct of County of Monterey, or defect in a design furnished by County of Monterey.

8.3 Indemnification for All Other Claims or Loss:

For any claim, loss, injury, damage, expense or liability other than claims arising out of CONTRACTOR's performance of design professional services under this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless County of Monterey, its governing board, directors, officers, employees, and agents against any claim for loss, injury, damage, expense or liability resulting from or alleging injury to or death of any person or loss of use of or damage to property, arising from or related to the performance of services under this AGREEMENT by CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors or agents, excepting only liability arising from the sole negligence, active negligence or willful misconduct of County of Monterey, or defect in a design furnished by County of Monterey.

9.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

9.1 <u>Evidence of Coverage:</u>

- 9.1.1 Prior to commencement of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall provide a "Certificate of Insurance" certifying that coverage as required herein has been obtained. Individual endorsements executed by the insurance carrier shall accompany the certificate. In addition CONTRACTOR upon request shall provide a certified copy of the policy or policies.
- 9.1.2 This verification of coverage shall be sent to the County of Monterey's Contracts/Purchasing Department, unless otherwise directed. CONTRACTOR shall <u>not</u> receive a "Notice to Proceed" with the work under this AGREEMENT until it has obtained all insurance required and such, insurance has been approved by County of Monterey. This approval of insurance shall neither relieve nor decrease the liability of CONTRACTOR.
- 9.1.3 Qualifying Insurers: All coverage's, except surety, shall be issued by companies which hold a current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A- VII, according to the current Best's Key Rating Guide or a company of equal financial stability that is approved by County of Monterey's Purchasing Officer.

9.2 <u>Insurance Coverage Requirements:</u>

- 9.2.1 Without limiting CONTRACTOR's duty to indemnify, CONTRACTOR shall maintain in effect throughout the term of this AGREEMENT a policy or policies of insurance with the following minimum limits of liability:
 - 9.2.1.1 <u>Commercial general liability insurance</u>, including but not limited to premises and operations, including coverage for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Personal Injury, Contractual Liability, Broadform Property Damage, Independent Contractors, Products and Completed Operations, with a combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

(Note: any proposed modifications to these general liability insurance requirements shall be attached as an Exhibit hereto, and the section(s) above that are proposed as not applicable shall be lined out in blue ink. All proposed modifications are subject to County approval.)

9.2.1.2 <u>Business automobile liability insurance</u>, covering all motor vehicles, including owned, leased, non-owned, and hired vehicles, used in providing services under this AGREEMENT, with a combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

(Note: any proposed modifications to these general liability insurance requirements shall be attached as an Exhibit hereto, and the section(s) above that are proposed as not applicable shall be lined out in blue ink. All proposed modifications are subject to County approval.)

9.2.1.3 <u>Workers' Compensation Insurance</u>, if CONTRACTOR employs others in the performance of this AGREEMENT, in accordance with California Labor Code section 3700 and with Employer's Liability limits not less than \$1,000,000 each person, \$1,000,000 each accident and \$1,000,000 each disease.

(Note: any proposed modifications to these general liability insurance requirements shall be attached as an Exhibit hereto, and the section(s) above that are proposed as not applicable shall be lined out in blue ink. All proposed modifications are subject to County approval.)

9.2.1.4 Professional liability insurance, if required for the professional services being provided, (e.g., those persons authorized by a license to engage in a business or profession regulated by the California Business and Professions Code), in the amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per claim and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate, to cover liability for malpractice or errors or omissions made in the course of rendering professional services. If professional liability insurance is written on a "claims-made" basis rather than an occurrence basis, CONTRACTOR shall, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this AGREEMENT.

(Note: any proposed modifications to these general liability insurance requirements shall be attached as an Exhibit hereto, and the section(s) above

that are proposed as not applicable shall be lined out in blue ink. All proposed modifications are subject to County approval.)

9.3 Other Insurance Requirements:

- 9.3.1 All insurance required by this AGREEMENT shall be with a company acceptable to County of Monterey and issued and executed by an admitted insurer authorized to transact Insurance business in the State of California. Unless otherwise specified by this AGREEMENT, all such insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, or, if the policy is not written on an occurrence basis, such policy with the coverage required herein shall continue in effect for a period of three years following the date CONTRACTOR completes its performance of services under this AGREEMENT.
- 9.3.2 Each liability policy shall provide that County of Monterey shall be given notice in writing at least thirty days in advance of any endorsed reduction in coverage or limit, cancellation, or intended non-renewal thereof. Each policy shall provide coverage for CONTRACTOR and additional insureds with respect to claims arising from each subcontractor, if any, performing work under this AGREEMENT, or be accompanied by a certificate of insurance from each subcontractor showing each subcontractor has identical insurance coverage to the above requirements.
- 9.3.3 Commercial general liability and automobile liability policies shall provide an endorsement naming the County of Monterey, its officers, agents, and employees as Additional Insureds with respect to liability arising out of the CONTRACTOR'S work, including ongoing and completed operations, and shall further provide that such insurance is primary insurance to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Monterey and that the insurance of the Additional Insureds shall not be called upon to contribute to a loss covered by the CONTRACTOR'S insurance. The required endorsement form for Commercial General Liability Additional Insured is ISO Form CG 20 10 11-85 or CG 20 10 10 01 in tandem with CG 20 37 10 01 (2000). The required endorsement form for Automobile Additional Insured endorsement is ISO Form CA 20 48 02 99.
- 9.3.4 Prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT by County of Monterey, CONTRACTOR shall file certificates of insurance with County of Monterey's contract administrator and County of Monterey's Contracts/Purchasing Division, showing that CONTRACTOR has in effect the insurance required by this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall file a new or amended certificate of insurance within five calendar days after any change is made in any insurance policy, which would alter the information on the certificate then on file. Acceptance or approval of insurance shall in no way modify or change the indemnification clause in this AGREEMENT, which shall continue in full force and effect.
- 9.3.5 CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT maintain in force the insurance coverage required under this AGREEMENT and shall send, without demand by County of Monterey, annual certificates to County of Monterey's Contract Administrator and County of Monterey's Contracts/Purchasing Division. If the certificate is not received by the expiration

date, County of Monterey shall notify CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR shall have five calendar days to send in the certificate, evidencing no lapse in coverage during the interim. Failure by CONTRACTOR to maintain such insurance is a default of this AGREEMENT, which entitles County of Monterey, at its sole discretion, to terminate this AGREEMENT immediately.

10.0 NON-DISCRIMINATION

- 10.1 During the performance of this contract, CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40), sex, or sexual orientation. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code, §12900, et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, §7285.0, et seq.).
- 10.2 The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code, §12900, et seq., set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this AGREEMENT by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.
- 10.3 CONTRACTOR shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of the clause in all AGREEMENTs with subcontractors to perform work under the contract.

11.0 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

- 11.1 <u>Non-Assignment</u>: CONTRACTOR shall not assign this contract or the work required herein without the prior written consent of NMC.
- 11.2 Subcontractors that have been approved by NMC: Any subcontractor utilized by CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the County of Monterey requirements stated herein this Agreement including insurance and indemnification sections.

12.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

12.1 CONTRACTOR covenants that CONTRACTOR, its responsible officers, and its employees having major responsibilities for the performance of work under the AGREEMENT, presently have no interest and during the term of this AGREEMENT will not acquire any interests, direct or indirect, which might conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of CONTRACTOR'S services under this AGREEMENT.

13.0 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

- 13.1 CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders, including but not limited to all state and federal tax laws that may affect in any manner the Project or the performance of the Services or those engaged to perform Services under this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices required by law in the performance of the Services.
- 13.2 CONTRACTOR shall report immediately to NMC, in writing, any discrepancy or inconsistency it discovers in the laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and/or guidelines in relation to the Project of the performance of the Services.
- 13.3 All documentation prepared by CONTRACTOR shall provide for a completed project that conforms to all applicable codes, rules, regulations and guidelines that are in force at the time such documentation is prepared.

14.0 RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

- 14.1 <u>Confidentiality:</u> CONTRACTOR and its officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors shall comply with any and all federal, state, and local laws, which provide for the confidentiality of records and other information. CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any confidential records or other confidential information received from the NMC or prepared in connection with the performance of this AGREEMENT, unless NMC specifically permits CONTRACTOR to disclose such records or information. CONTRACTOR shall promptly transmit to NMC any and all requests for disclosure of any such confidential records or information. CONTRACTOR shall not use any confidential information gained by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this AGREEMENT except for the sole purpose of carrying out CONTRACTOR's obligations under this AGREEMENT.
- 14.2 <u>NMC Records</u>: When this AGREEMENT expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall return to NMC any NMC records which CONTRACTOR used or received from NMC to perform services under this AGREEMENT.
- 14.3 <u>Maintenance of Records</u>: CONTRACTOR shall prepare, maintain, and preserve all reports and records that may be required by federal, state, County of Monterey and NMC rules and regulations related to services performed under this AGREEMENT.
- 14.4 Access to and Audit of Records: NMC and the County of Monterey shall have the right to examine, monitor and audit all records, documents, conditions, and activities of CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors related to services provided under this AGREEMENT. The parties to this AGREEMENT may be subject, at the request of NMC or as part of any audit of County, to the examination and audit of the State Auditor pertaining to matters connected with the performance of this AGREEMENT for a period of three years after final payment under the AGREEMENT.

15.0 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

Travel Reimbursement is not allowed for this AGREEMENT.

16.0 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

All data provided by NMC belongs to Natividad Medical Center (County of Monterey). All records compiled by CONTRACTOR in completing the work described in this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to written reports, studies, drawings, blueprints, negatives of photographs, graphs, charts, plans, source codes, specifications and all other similar recorded data, shall become and remain the property of NMC. Use or distribution of NMC data by CONTRACTOR is prohibited unless CONTACTOR obtains prior written consent from NMC.

For NMC data hosted or stored on equipment not owned by NMC, CONTRACTOR shall furnish all data to NMC upon request by NMC at any time during the term of this AGREEMENT and up to one year after the term has expired, in a useable format as specified by NMC and at no additional cost to NMC.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this AGREEMENT, it is understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR shall retain all of its rights in its proprietary information including, without limitation, methodologies and methods of analysis, ideas, concepts, expressions, know how, methods, techniques, skills, knowledge and experience possessed by CONTRACTOR prior to this AGREEMENT.

17.0 NOTICES

Notices required to be given to the respective parties under this AGREEMENT shall be deemed given by any of the following means: (1) when personally delivered to NMC contracts division manager or to CONTRACTOR'S responsible officer; (2) when personally delivered to the party's principle place of business during normal business hours, by leaving notice with any person apparently in charge of the office and advising such person of the import and contents of the notice; (3) 24 hours after the notice is transmitted by FAX machine to the other party, at the party's FAX number specified pursuant to this AGREEMENT, provided that the party giving notice by FAX must promptly confirm receipt of the FAX by telephone to the receiving party's office; or, (4) three (3) days after the notice is deposited in the U. S. mail with first class or better postage fully prepaid, addressed to the party as indicated below.

Notices mailed or faxed to the parties shall be addressed as follows:

TO NMC: TO CONTRACTOR:

Natividad Medical Center CONTRACTS DIVISION 1441 Constitution Blvd Salinas, CA 93906 FAX: (831) 757-2592

Name	
Address	
Email	
Phone No.	
Fax No	

18.0 LEGAL DISPUTES

CONTRACTOR agrees that this AGREEMENT, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this AGREEMENT, shall be governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of California, excluding any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.

Any dispute that arises under or relates to this AGREEMENT (whether contract, tort, or both) shall be resolved in the Superior Court of California in Monterey County, California.

CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform under this AGREEMENT during any dispute.

The parties agree to waive their separate rights to a trial by jury. This waiver means that the trial will be before a judge.

-- END OF SAMPLE AGREEMENT SECTION--

RFP # 9600-79	Marketing &	Granhic	Design	Service
KIT # 9000-19	Markeung &	Grabine	Design	Service

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS AND RFP SIGNATURE PAGE

ATTACHMENT A – GENERAL FIRM INFORMATION

Please prepare a general information summary about your firm which includes the following: (This document should be prepared on separate $8\frac{1}{2}$ X 11 sheets)

Firm Name, Address, Web Site URL:

Year Established: Enter the year the firm (or branch office, if appropriate) was established under the current name.

Ownership Type: Enter the type of ownership or legal structure of the firm (sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, joint venture, etc.).

Point of Contact: Provide this information for a representative of the firm that the agency can contact for additional information. The representative must be empowered to speak on contractual and policy matters.

Former Firm Names: Indicate any other previous names for the firm (or branch office) during the last six years. Insert the year that this corporate name change was effective. This information is used to review past performance on Federal contracts.

---End of ATTACHMENT A---

ATTACHMENT B - PRICING

Key Staff Persons: List the hourly rates which your organization would bill NMC for, <u>inclusive</u> of all expenses, for the positions and services listed in the table below. List any additional positions and services your organization would propose as necessary to meet NMC's needs as described herein this RFP. It is crucial that all positions and services proposed to meet NMC's needs be listed below with billing rates.

PRICING (20)					
Job Classification/Title	Bill Rate to NMC per Hour	Role Description			
Creative Director					
Account Executive					
Graphic Designer					
Web Designer					
New Media Designer					
OTHER					
SERVICES	Hourly Rate	Description			
Graphic Design					
Web Design					
Copy Writing					
Photography					
Videography					
Web Editing/Updates					
OTHER					

⁻⁻⁻End of ATTACHMENT B---

ATTACHMENT C – PROJECT EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES

Please provide a short response to the company's ability to provide the services listed below. (This document should be prepared on separate $8\frac{1}{2} \times 11$ sheets).

- 1. Development of customized strategic marketing plans
- 2. Brand planning, development, and positioning including overall brand campaigns
- 3. Creative development of marketing collateral and support materials
- 4. Graphic design & coordination of production services for marketing collateral and support materials
- 5. Coordination of print services
- 6. Advertising services including creative, production, placement, and measurement
- 7. Website design, maintenance, and optimization including information architecture, content management, site design, metrics, and other expertise as needed
- 8. Social media services
- 9. Photography/Video
- 10. Event planning & support materials
- 11. Project management services

Hospital / Healthcare Organizational Experience & References

Please describe at least three (3) projects the company has completed which, at a minimum, includes the information listed below. (This document should be prepared on separate $8\frac{1}{2}$ X 11 sheets).

- 1. Project Name:
- 2. Brief Project Description:
- 3. Client Name:
- 4. Client Contact Info: <u>Please include phone number and email address if possible as the</u> County will conduct reference checks using this information.
- 5. Cost of Project: Please include total cost.
- 6. Additional Comments: (if relevant)

---End of ATTACHMENT C---

ATTACHMENT D - LOCAL VENDOR COUNTY OF MONTEREY LOCAL BUSINESS DECLARATION FORM

If a business entity is claiming to be a "Local Vendor" as defined by the "Monterey County Local Preference Policy", adopted by the Monterey County Board of Supervisors on August 29, 2012, it must certify they meet the definition of "Local Vendor" as defined and in accordance to the adopted policy. Any business entity claiming to be a local business as defined by the policy, shall so certify in writing herein that they meet all of the criteria listed within the policy, which can be accessed online: http://www.natividad.com/about-us/vendors

County shall not be responsible or required to verify the accuracy or any such certifications, and shall have sole discretion to determine if a bidder meets the definition of "local vendor" as provided herein. Any business which falsely claims a preference pursuant to Monterey County Local Preference Policy shall be ineligible to bid on county purchases or contracts for a period of three (3) years from the date of discovery of the false certification(s).

Any business eligible for the local preference who desires to have the preference applied during the award selection process shall return this completed Local Business Preference Declaration form with its proposal or qualifications package response. Upon request, bidder agrees to provide additional information to substantiate this certification.

Select that which is applicable to your business entity (at least one in order for a business to be considered local):

It either owns, leases, rents or otherwise occupies a fixed office or other commercial building, or portion thereof,
having a street address within the Area. Vendor possesses a valid and verifiable business license, if required,
issued by a city within the Area or by one of the three counties within the Area when the address is located in an
unincorporated area within one of the three counties as defined as "Area"; and
It employs at least one full time employee within the "Area", or if the business has no employees, the business
shall be at least fifty percent (50%) owned by one or more persons whose primary residence(s) is located within
the "Area"; and
It's business has been in existence, in its current name, within the "Area" for at least two (2) years immediately
prior to the issuance of either a request for proposals or request for qualifications or request for quotations for
the County; and
It is a newly established business which is owned by an individual(s) formerly employed by a Local Business for
at least two (2) years.

As per the policy: "Area" shall mean Monterey County, San Benito County, and Santa Cruz County. Note; If applicable your organization must possess a valid resale license from the State Franchise Tax Board showing its local address within the "Area" and evidencing that payment of the local share of the sales tax goes to either a city within the "Area" or to one of the three counties within the defined "Area".

On behalf of my business entity (i.e.; organization) I certify under penalty of perjury that I have both read and confirm that my business entity meets the requirements as outlined within the County's Local Preference Policy for the procurement in question.

Business Legal Name (plus Dba name if any):

Business Address:			
City:	State:	Zip Code:	
Signature of Authorized Representative:			Date:
Title of Authorized Rep	presentative:		
Telephone Number: (_)E-Mail:		

This form must be submitted within a bidder's proposal in order for the County to apply the applicable local preference. Bidders who do not qualify as a local business as per the policy should not submit this form.

RFP SIGNATURE PAGE

NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER (COUNTY OF MONTEREY) CONTRACTS OFFICE

RFP # 9600-79 ISSUE DATE: Monday, February 19, 2018



RFP TITLE: MARKETING & GRAPHIC DESIGN SERVICES

PROPOSALS ARE DUE IN THE OFFICE OF THE NMC CONTRACT MANAGER BY 3:00 P.M., LOCAL TIME, ON Monday, March 19, 2018

MAILING ADDRESS: NATIVIDAD MEDICAL CENTER CONTRACTS DIVISION 1441 CONSTITUTION BLVD. SALINAS, CA 93906

QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS RFP SHOULD BE IN WRITING AND DIRECTED TO:

Maribel Zendejas, Buyer II for Natividad Medical Center, Contracts Division

Email: <u>zendejasm@natividad.com</u>

Phone: 831-783-2616

CONTRACTOR MUST INCLUDE THE FO	LLOWING IN EACH PROPOSAL	(1 original, plus 4 paper of	copy and 1electronic copy)			
ALL REQUIRED CONTENT AS DEFI	NED PER SECTION 8.0					
Attachment A – General Firm Informati	ion					
Attachment B – Pricing						
Attachment C – Project Experience and	References					
Attachment D - Local Business Declaration Form (Submit this form ONLY if your organization qualifies)						
This RFP Signature Page must be included with your submittal in order to validate your proposal. Proposals submitted without this page will be deemed non-responsive.						
CHECK HERE IF YOU HAVE ANY EXCEPTIONS TO THIS SOLICITATION.						
BIDDERS MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLO I hereby agree to furnish the articles and/or se conditions in the Request for Proposal packag signatory authority to present this proposal pa	ervices stipulated in my proposal at t ge. I further attest that I am an offici	he price quoted, subject to				
Company Name:		Date:				
Signature:	Phone:		Fax:			
Printed Name:	Title:	E-mail:				
Street Address/P.O. Box:	City:	State:	ZIP:			